

# Human Rights Framework Policy BancoEstado

October 2024



# Table of Contents

I.	Background	2
II.	Policy Objective	2
III.	Scope	2
IV.	Legal Framework	3
V.	Roles and Responsibilities	3
G	overnance	3
D	efinition of Roles and Responsibilities	4
VI.	Policy Description	5
Co	ommitments and Principles of Action	5
	Employees	6
	Clients	7
	Community	7
	Suppliers and contractors	8
	Environment	9
In	nplementation	9
	Human rights due diligence process	9
	Risk management	.0
	Human rights training and dissemination	.0
	Complaint and/or consultation channels	.0
	Remediation	.1
VII.	Associated Documentation	.1
VIII.	Glossary	2



## I. Background

The recognition of human rights initially arose in 1945, at the end of World War II, when states formally agreed to establish the United Nations (UN), with the specific purpose of "to maintain international peace and security." On that occasion, states also committed to finding a way to internationally guarantee the fundamental rights of all people everywhere in the world at all times, simply because they are humans. In 1948, states formulated the **Universal Declaration of Human Rights,** establishing that the "recognition of the inherent dignity and of the equal and inalienable rights of all members of the human family is the foundation of freedom, justice, and peace in the world<sup>2</sup>."

Subsequently, in 2011, the **United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights<sup>3</sup>** were published as the main reference framework for companies to respect human rights, and Chile adhered to them. For its implementation, Chile published, in 2017, the **National Action Plan for Business and Human Rights**<sup>4</sup>.

# **II. Policy Objective**

This framework policy reflects BancoEstado's commitment to respecting the fundamental rights of those with whom we interact through our procedures, activities, and operations.

This commitment reflects the strict adherence to ethical principles, personal integrity, and human dignity that have characterized the bank's actions throughout its history. It also deepens in the principles of action that will guide our relations with customers, communities, workers, suppliers, and contractors to comply to respect human rights by adopting appropriate measures to avoid or mitigate negative consequences and allowing for redress if violations are detected.

#### III. Scope

This policy applies to every BancoEstado employee. We will also promote its knowledge and application among all the bank's stakeholders.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> United Nations Charter, art. 1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Universal Declaration of Human Rights: https://www.un.org/sites/un2.un.org/files/2021/03/udhr.pdf.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights: Implementing the UN "Protect, Respect and Remedy Framework" HR/PUB/11/04, 2011.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Available at <a href="https://minrel.gob.cl/minrel/site/artic/20171109/asocfile/20171109170236/plan">https://minrel.gob.cl/minrel/site/artic/20171109/asocfile/20171109170236/plan</a> de accion nacional de ddhh y empresas.pdf.



Given the nature of the issue, we will share it with the BancoEstado Group's subsidiaries so that each can develop its own policy in this area, taking into account its unique culture, business, and particularities.

## IV. Legal Framework

We recognize and adhere to international human rights rules and standards: (1) Universal Declaration of Human Rights, 1948; (2) International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, 1966; (3) International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, 1966; (4) Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights (UN), 2011; (5) Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work (ILO)<sup>5</sup>, 1998; (6) Voluntary Principles on Security and Human Rights, 2000; (7) ILO Convention 107, 1957, and Convention 169, 1989 on the rights of Indigenous and tribal populations; and other internationally recognized frameworks adopted by the State of Chile, as well as the national regulatory framework<sup>6</sup> and BancoEstado's internal regulations related to respect for fundamental rights.

# V. Roles and Responsibilities

#### Governance

The responsibility for implementing BancoEstado's Human Rights Framework Policy lies with all the bank's functional areas and all its levels. It is the responsibility of the Sustainability Deputy Management, which reports to the Office of Public Affairs and Sustainability, to update and monitor the validity of this policy.

The results of the human rights due diligence processes and the follow-up of action plans for the mitigation and/or remediation of human rights risks will be reported to the Corporate Sustainability Committee and the Executive Committee will supervise the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Including ten fundamental ILO covenants: Freedom of Association and Protection of the Right to Organise Convention, 1948 (No. 87); Right to Organise and Collective Bargaining Convention, 1949 (No. 98); Forced Labour Convention, 1930 (No. 29); Abolition of Forced Labour Convention, 1957 (No. 105); Minimum Age Convention, 1973 (No. 138); Worst Forms of Child Labour Convention, 1999 (No. 182); Equal Remuneration Convention, 1951 (No. 100); Discrimination (Employment and Occupation) Convention, 1958 (No. 111); Occupational Safety and Health Convention, 1981 (No. 155); Promotional Framework for Occupational Safety and Health Convention, 2006 (No. 187).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> National regulatory frameworks such as Law No. 21,643 on labor and sexual harassment or violence in the workplace, Law No. 20,422, Law No. 21,015 on equal opportunities for people with disabilities, Law No. 20,609 against discrimination, and Law General Standard No. 461 of the Financial Market Commission, among others.



application of the policy and will promote the establishment of a culture of respect for human rights in BancoEstado.

# **Definition of Roles and Responsibilities**

-	Responsible	-	Roles and responsibilities
-	Office of Public Affairs and Sustainability, Sustainability Deputy Management	-	Providing technical support to the areas responsible for managing actual and/or potential human rights risks and their respective action plans.
		-	Coordinating the human rights due diligence process.
		-	Spreading the contents of the policy and the outcomes of human rights due diligence and promptly communicating to stakeholders on BancoEstado's human rights management.
		-	Developing general and targeted human rights training plans.
-	Office of the Chief Risk Officer (CRO), Transversal Risks Deputy Management	-	Periodically review human rights risks and their action plans with the areas responsible for processes, in accordance with the in-process operational risk methodology.
-	Office of the Chief Compliance Officer (CCO)	-	Reviewing general regulatory compliance and, specifically, those rules and standards considered in Section III, "Legal framework," of this policy.
-	Ethics Committee	-	Evaluating and determining the existence of breaches of human rights regulations in cases involving the institution's employees.
-	Areas responsible for processes <sup>7</sup>	-	Performing action plans and control improvements to prevent human rights risks.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Refers to those areas responsible for processes where residual human rights risks have been detected, which require the implementation of action plans according to the operational process risk methodology and the "Risk Management" section of this policy.



# **VI. Policy Description**

At BancoEstado, we must guide our activities based on the best practices of probity and transparency, fostering an internal culture of respect for human rights in all our operations and business relationships, reflecting a public bank that puts people at the center of its work.

Our Corporate Sustainability Policy and the bank's Internal Regulations for Order, Hygiene, and Safety both address the principle of respecting people's fundamental rights. Through this Human Rights Framework Policy, we develop this principle, defining our commitment and an action framework that promotes good practices for the respect of these rights, as well as establishing management mechanisms that enable us to identify and prevent actual and potential impacts on our stakeholders.

So, we are committed to respecting human rights and to preventing, mitigating, and fixing any human rights violations caused directly or indirectly by our activities.

#### **Commitments and Principles of Action**

Considering that the State of Chile is responsible for the protection of human rights, at BancoEstado we carry out complementary work, following the provisions of the National Action Plan on Business and Human Rights, which seeks to consolidate a culture of respect for these rights in business activities. To this end, we have defined commitments and principles to guide our actions toward our stakeholders, including BancoEstado's employees, clients, suppliers, contractors, communities, and the environment, which may be affected by our operations.

In addition, we are committed to implementing a program that will help us to establish, communicate, and guide how our employees interact with our stakeholders. This program will include the right reporting channels and actions, both informative and formative, so that we can: (1) prevent human rights risks; (2) find possible violations of this policy; (3) act quickly if any risk materializes; and (4) carry out comprehensive management that is in charge of monitoring, continuous improvement, and internalizing learning in our processes.

To achieve our objectives, we set forth below the commitments and principles that guide the way we relate to our stakeholders, ensuring respect for their fundamental rights:



#### **Employees**

At BancoEstado, we consider that the relationship with our workers is a fundamental pillar, and, therefore, we establish commitments that address respect for human rights, such as:

- Protect the principles of equality and non-discrimination by promoting work environments free of discriminatory attitudes related to race or ethnicity, nationality, socioeconomic status, language, ideology or political opinion, religion or belief, union membership or participation in labor organizations or lack thereof, sex, maternity, breastfeeding, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, marital status, age, affiliation, personal appearance, illness, disability or any discriminatory practice that affects the dignity of our workers.
- Promote diversity and inclusion through the improvement of processes that could contemplate any difficulty or bias for the inclusion of minority groups in our workforce and through communications that promote the development of a culture of diversity and inclusion within the bank.
- Promote gender equity in BancoEstado, monitoring possible gaps in salary equality between men and women, equal access to career development and training, strengthening the participation of women in executive, managerial, and other positions of responsibility, and generating initiatives that promote co-responsibility in the care of the children of male and female employees.
- Guarantee compliance with the labor rights recognized in current national legislation, international agreements signed by Chile, and labor regulations, in addition to generating decent working conditions in aspects such as the payment of fair wages and workspaces that promote the physical and psychological well-being of the employees.
- **Protect the health and safety of our employees,** identifying the sources of health and safety risks and impacts at BancoEstado, to manage and mitigate them promptly.
- Guarantee the right to strike, collective bargaining, and freedom of association for our workers, recognizing their contribution to the development and growth of BancoEstado.
- Ensure compliance with regulations on working hours and rest periods, seeking to promote the right to free time and leisure and foster a balance between work, personal, and family life for our employees.
- Reject any form of forced or degrading labor and child and/or labor exploitation in our operations, managing the necessary prevention and surveillance mechanisms.



- Promote work environments that are free from any form of harassment, abuse, intimidation, violence, or abuse of power of a sexual or labor nature that violates personal dignity and respect for people, as well as spread mechanisms and reporting procedures that protect the identity and integrity of those affected.
- **Respect the right to privacy,** strengthening mechanisms to protect the personal data and privacy of our employees.
- **Promote training actions** for our workers in human rights issues.

#### Clients

Our clients give meaning to BancoEstado's activities, which is why we work to offer inclusive, accessible products and services with a positive impact on them, whether they are individuals or companies. Integrating human rights into our relationships with this stakeholder group means being aware that, as a public bank, we have the duty to welcome all our clients in their diversity. In this way, we are committed to:

- Promote access to our financial and non-financial products and services under conditions of equality, inclusion, and non-discrimination, under the legal and commercial requirements of the institution.
- **Promote digital and financial inclusion,** generating initiatives that mitigate the gaps in access to digital banking.
- Protect the right to clear and transparent information on our products and services.
- Respect the right to privacy, confidentiality, and responsible use of our customers' data.
- **Respect consumer rights,** strengthening compliance with related regulations.
- Promote responsible advertising practices to avoid stereotypes of gender, race, sexual identity, or any other that affect the dignity of people.
- Promote that our financing of companies integrates and mitigates their environmental and human rights over people and communities.
- Promote the physical safety of people inside our facilities, respecting the right to personal integrity of our clients.

#### Community

As a public bank in the country, we seek to contribute positively to the communities where we operate, advocating that the development of our activities does not affect their rights. In this regard, we are committed to:



- Manage impacts on the rights of the communities where we maintain a physical presence, specifically in branch offices and corporate buildings.
- Manage the necessary actions to react to incidents and natural disasters that affect communities, considering that our operation is essential for the continuity of the payment chain.
- Reject any kind of corruption, strengthening our prevention mechanisms and the
  management of complaints, understanding that these illicit acts can directly or
  indirectly affect rights such as equal opportunities, the right to physical and moral
  integrity, and the right to a life free of violence in communities.

#### Suppliers and contractors

At BancoEstado, we seek to relate proactively with our suppliers and contractors, sharing best labor practices, promoting joint work for the respect of human rights, developing internal policies and procedures to promote and encourage good practices in contracting, and the provision of services by third parties. Consequently, at BancoEstado, we are committed to:

- Promote that our suppliers and contractors comply with the requirements of current labor legislation and declare their respect for human rights, maintaining respectful and dignified relations with their employees. BancoEstado rejects human trafficking and any type of child, forced, or compulsory labor, ensuring that our suppliers and contractors promote an inclusive, dignified, fair and nondiscriminatory work environment, as well as healthy and safe working conditions for their workers.
- **Promote transparency in contracting** through robust procurement processes, with special care to avoid conflicts of interest and to foster freedom of competition.
- Preventing business relationships with suppliers and contractors who are sanctioned for any crime contemplated in our Ethics Manual, the Crime Prevention Manual, the Prevention of Money Laundering and Financing of Terrorism Policy, and any other established in the law applicable to BancoEstado.
- Respect the deadlines outlined in contracts and contracting processes of suppliers and contractors, avoiding delays that may affect the provision of services, payments, and/or social and economic consequences of such delays.



#### **Environment**

As a state institution, at BancoEstado we play a key role in the incorporation of environmental and climate measures for our stakeholders. Under this premise, we are committed to:

- Promote the human right to a clean, healthy, and sustainable environment.
- Promote improvements in internal capabilities to identify, analyze, measure, and manage environmental impacts during the development of our operations.
- Ensure compliance with current environmental regulations applicable to BancoEstado.
- Promote the transition to a low-carbon economy, especially in our customers and suppliers, from a fair socio-ecological approach, which allows equal opportunities and access to financial offers and support initiatives in this transition.

#### **Implementation**

At BancoEstado, we are committed to the effective implementation of this policy at all hierarchical levels of the organization and the stakeholders involved, ensuring its dissemination and compliance. All departments and their respective leaders will be responsible for the dissemination in their areas and manage the deployment to the stakeholders with whom they are related.

#### Human rights due diligence process

At BancoEstado, we are committed to developing a human rights due diligence process by the guidelines of the United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights and the Due Diligence Guidance for Responsible Business Conduct of the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD). With this process, we establish mechanisms aimed at identifying actual and potential risks to people's rights.

This process considers the various declarations, covenants, conventions, and frameworks for action in the area of human rights considered in Section III, "Legal Framework," of this document. It also considers the stakeholders, problems, and risk groups considered in Section VI, "Commitments and Principles of Action."

The human rights due diligence process will be updated every two years or in particular situations such as changes in the operation, eventual mergers, acquisitions, and joint



ventures, among others, to identify the main human rights risks and thus anticipate and prevent possible negative consequences on people.

#### Risk management

Once the risks in human rights have been identified and characterized, they will be associated with the areas responsible for the processes, to be evaluated and prioritized in line with in-process operational risk methodology. This generally involves the evaluation of the inherent risk and the effectiveness of existing controls, calculating the residual risk level.

The residual risk is the reference value from which the prioritization of risks and impacts on human rights is made, assigning monitoring indicators, improvements in risk controls, and action and/or remediation plans for cases of greater exposure to risk. Each risk will have its respective responsible person(s) assigned, who must periodically report on risk management.

The Transversal Risk Management, which reports to the CRO, will be responsible for generating the follow-up mechanisms for the reports of the different areas in charge of managing human rights risks, their action and/or remediation plans. The monitoring will be periodic, with a minimum of twice a year, in cases of materialization of any risk and each human rights due diligence process.

#### Human rights training and dissemination

In the training area, we are committed to promoting a culture of respect for human rights within BancoEstado and in the relations we maintain with our stakeholders, which will allow us to understand and incorporate the concepts in this area, with a special focus on those positions that have a greater impact on people.

We will disclose in a timely, transparent, and accountable manner changes to this policy, the results of its implementation, and the main human rights risks related to our activity through the communication channels with internal and external stakeholders.

#### Complaint and/or consultation channels

BancoEstado has different whistleblower channels to guarantee integral and transparent complaint mechanisms, thus allowing our stakeholders to raise their queries, complaints, and claims confidentially. We are committed to including the matters discussed in this



policy within our channels of complaints and claims, ensuring proper follow-up, and providing actions for remediation.

We are also committed to keeping channels that allow us to receive complaints from our employees, customers, suppliers, the general public, or any person related to BancoEstado that are related to non-compliance with our internal regulations and national legislation in force. In addition, we will encourage these channels to comply with the recommendations established in the Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.

#### Remediation

Part of our commitment to respect human rights is to have the appropriate remediation processes in place when we harm our stakeholders. In this regard, we are committed to seeking the necessary resolution measures and to communicating in detail the final remediation of the complaints filed with the bank.

In addition, we will ensure that the information on our actions taken and their development is transparent and reliable, safeguarding the integrity and privacy of the people involved in the processes.

#### VII. Associated Documentation

This policy is a framework policy, as it sets out the general and essential human rights commitments. Based on it, our procedures, manuals, and specific policies develop the different commitments of this framework of action. Given its nature as a framework policy, this document is related to other current and future BancoEstado documents, among which the following stand out:

- Corporate Sustainability Policy
- Corporate Governance Policy
- Ethics Manual
- Goods Purchasing Policy
- People Management and Development Policy
- Gender Equality, Diversity, Inclusion, and Work-Life Balance Policy
- Internal Regulations for Order, Hygiene, and Safety
- Environmental and Climate Change Policy



# VIII. Glossary

- Human rights: universal standards that protect the dignity and freedom of all people
  by the mere fact of their existence, regardless of their origin, nationality, race, age,
  gender, sexual orientation, religion, language, political affiliation, social class,
  disability, or any other condition. In this policy, we use the terms people's rights and
  fundamental rights as synonyms for human rights.
- Respect for human rights: this corresponds to the responsibility of companies, established by the United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, to avoid any violation of people's rights in their processes and value chain, identifying risks and addressing the negative consequences that their activities may have on those rights.
- Human rights due diligence: this is the process in which a company investigates in its procedures and activities the existence of actual or potential negative impacts on people's rights to take appropriate measures.
- Potential human rights impacts: negative consequences to people's rights that may occur in the future as a result of a company's procedures and activities.
- Actual human rights impacts: negative consequences on people's rights, with verifiable and tangible evidence of their violation. The actual impact may be present or past.
- Human rights risks: this is the possibility of harm or damage occurring as a result of
  the performance of an activity, process, or circumstance of the company, and
  therefore requires mechanisms to help prevent it from materializing. The process
  that evaluates and monitors these risks is known as human rights risk management.
- Remedy: action by a company that seeks to counteract, amend, or compensate for
  actual human rights impacts committed directly in its processes or activities to any
  affected person. These may be of different kinds, depending on the nature and
  scope of the impact, and may include apologies, restitution, rehabilitation, financial
  or non-financial compensation, punitive sanctions, and the adoption of preventive
  measures for future impacts.
- Clean, healthy, and sustainable environment: this refers to the right of all people to
  live in an environment that promotes their well-being and protects nature. This
  includes aspects such as breathing air free from harmful pollutants, living in safe and
  stable climatic conditions, accessing clean water and healthy food, and inhabiting
  environments where biodiversity and natural habitats are preserved.



- Transition to a low-carbon economy: adoption of measures to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions produced by the actors in the economy and thus mitigate the consequences of climate change that can affect the human race. Some of these measures may include the adoption of renewable energies, improvements in energy efficiency, technological innovation, and sustainable investment.
- Fair social-ecological approach: it is an ethical principle in the face of the climate crisis and the transition to a low-carbon economy that considers both ecological sustainability and social equity, recognizing that the impacts of climate change affect people, companies, and communities unequally, either because of their socioeconomic status or their vulnerability to the effects of climate change. It is proposed as "fair" in the sense of "environmental justice," where it must be ensured that environmental benefits and responsibilities include such vulnerabilities and unequal conditions for adopting climate change adaptation and mitigation measures. For the financial sector, it involves mobilizing financial solutions that enable a viable transition for people and companies of different sizes and sectors.
- Socio-environmental risk mitigation in financing: these are preventive actions that
  a financial institution adopts when financing companies or projects, considering
  the potential impacts that such project or company may cause on the environment
  or the communities where it is located. It mainly involves making the financial
  operation conditional on compliance with certain standards or practices that
  reduce social and environmental risks and, therefore, respect human rights.